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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we would not be interrupted. And also when speaking, please speak directly into the microphone because everything it is being recorded. And I'd like to point out that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that we will be discussing this evening. Roll call. 

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON



MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JAMES CAMPBELL, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)


ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 



ALL GRANITE & MARBLE CORP. 
BROOKSIDE FARM ROAD, NBGH







(97-1-20.2) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a warehouse/fabrication facility along with office and retail use. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening All Granite & Marble.             

Ms. Gennarelli: For tonight's applications all of the Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, October 18th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, October 19th. This applicant sent out eight registered letters, six were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Cordisco: Good evening Mrs. Cardone. How are you?

Chairperson Cardone: Good.

Mr. Cordisco: Dominic Cordisco, for the record, from Drake Loeb representing All Granite and I’m here with a…our engineer and our architect tonight. This is our first appearance. Let me introduce the architect its Anthony Garrett and he’s responsible for the design and he can speak to you about that. And we also have Justin Dates from Maser a…who is responsible for the site plan. A…put briefly a…this is a site that is located on Brookside Farm Road. We adjoin Interstate 84. We’ve been before the Planning Board and we’ve been developing the site plan for the development of this site. A…Robert Deja is the owner of All Granite and he is a…on his way but he’s been a little bit delayed by the weather so he should be here in a couple of moments a but a he could speak to you about a their a…a…their business and their practices and a…but the site is as I said on Brookside Farm Road and adjoins Interstate 84. The design of the site a…has a…led us before you because we need a variance for a this rear yard setback and for the majority of building. We a…are 51.8 feet I believe away from Interstate 84, the property line within Interstate 84. The requirement, of course, is 60 feet in your Code for the IB District and a however there is a portion of the building where we are approximately 20 feet away from the property line. So with that I think it would probably be best to hear from the consultants who are responsible for the design and I’ll turn it over to them. 

Chairperson Cardone: Please use the microphone. There is another microphone right there and you can take it off the stand. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Dominic, please tilt yours up a little bit more. That’s good. Thank you.

Mr. Garrett: Is this…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Is it green? 

Mr. Garrett: It is green. Is it picking me up?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Garrett: O.K. great. Hi, my name is Anthony or Tony Garrett the architect who a…prepared the drawings for a…the All Granite facility in Newburgh, New York. A…we have done three other buildings, designed three other new facilities for All Granite. A…as well as been involved with a three of their other facilities. And they have six all together a…or I should they have five all together. We’re hoping to build the sixth in Newburgh, New York. They are, just to give you a little background about All Granite; they are the largest fabricator in the Tri-State area of granite countertops. They also have a website Marble.com and a sell wholesale to the industry. So a lot of a smaller shops also buy their marble a from All Granite. And they identified this piece of property south of Route 84 just west of the Route 52 exit a and across from Brookside Farms Road from the Pepsi facility a and a we met…we actually had the meeting with the Pepsi representatives, they are aware of the project. A…we received today an email a…of an endorsement for the project, they like the project a and I…its unique a…working for All Granite because although this is a a fabrication and warehouse building a we’re able to clad the building or a significant portion of the building in granite panels. We know where we can get the granite relatively inexpensively so it kind of upgrades the appearance of the buildings that we’ve designed for them and you’ll notice the shape is a little odd and not really a function of the site. The site is somewhat trapezoidal it’s a very linear site. There’s a…a significant amount of topography change on the site and we’ve tried to work with that a topography. The overall footprint of the building is just under 30,000 sq. ft. A…there is a second floor a…of the…which relates to the upper portion of the hill, a little over 9,000 sq. ft. which is the showroom area and adjoins the parking…a the parking lot which is accessed from Brookside Farms Road. There’s a lower level partially dug into the hill but also taking advantage of the a slope down towards the creek at the western end of the site a…that’s where our a loading facilities that serve the lower level of the building are.  And this is an architectural site plan, a rendered by my office to kind of depict the building in brown, the parking areas in white and the a landscaped areas the remains in green we’re covering just under 20% of the a property so…we don’t believe it’s a real a…you know, we believe it’s a very appropriate development of the site. A…the building does have excellent visibility from Route 84 a and you’ll notice this curb which is prevalent on a lot of the drawings a it’s really a branding element for All Granite. All their new facilities we create a curved wall with an accent granite piece and that curve gives a better view from, in this case, Route 84. One of the other facilities is along route 80 in Pennsylvania and it also give some articulation to the building. A we’re here before you tonight seeking a variance a for the a…for relief along that rear yard facing Route 84 for that curved element as well as an approximately 10-foot infringement of the rear yard along that a north side of the property and these weren’t arbitrary decisions a because the shape, the linearity of the property and the functionality that we need to accomplish on the lower level we’re here before you seeking that relief. The fabrication that occurs inside the building and the storage of the stones inside the building a makes a requirement for bridge cranes inside the building to move the granite back and forth. Optimally those bridge cranes want to span the a…the gantry of that crane wants to span between 40 and 45 feet to be most economical and a most a…user friendly. And the two bays, the two major bays of the building are a 40-feet wide and because of that and because of the narrowness of this wedge shaped piece of property even as we shift the building towards the west it became apparent that we needed to request some of this relieve. So we have a hardship on the site and a we are trying to work with the site. I think it’s a great location and it’ll create manufacturing jobs for the Newburgh area. We’ve met with Orange County a…a…they are a…very much have a positive feeling about the project. A…remains to be seen how we want to move forward with Orange County but a…they have, you know, we have reached out to them.

Mr. Hughes: Which Orange County agency are you referring to? 

Mr. Garrett: The IDA. Then again, architecturally the a the lower level there’s some employee facilities, the upper level there’s a showroom area again accessible from the east (inaudible) mimics some of the a architectural features inside the building the curved surfaces. A…and this is really a big display area, they will construct counters and small kitchens and people, you know, from a retail standpoint will move in and out of this build, you know, move in and out of this space a…to see the granite. In addition to that they also will go downstairs to actually pick out their slabs of granite. Architecturally my coworker is here so he has some pretty colored renderings of the building that they prepared but we’ll start with the plan elevations. This is the elevation facing Route 84 a…the eastern portion if we’re looking from the north so the eastern portion of the building so it is to the left a little counter intuitive however a I’ll try and explain my way through it. That’s the curved surface, large curtain wall aluminum and glass a…structure, a window, we’re proposing a green tinted glass with green frame to match what’s going on the a Pepsi Cola building across the way. Similarly we have a long strip window, some more long curtain wall. So we’re not trying to build just a warehouse. We’re going to build something with some architectural character an esthetic a appeal from from both sides. Along the south side of the building similarly we have a…we have granite at the showroom area and then where we get to the upper portions of the building we’re proposing a metal siding a…and the metal siding is actually, I brought a little sample, it’s a gunmetal grey. This is actually zinc a and it’s actually a very sustainable metal. It a…it’s self-healing there’s a lot of benefits to it. We also think it relates very well to the granite selections. Can I have the rendering? Thank you. A…and this gives you a pretty good sense of the color with the grey up at the top, a black, a greenish black granite with some accents along the bottom of the building so that’s really gives you idea looking from the northeast corner, the front entry, the curved element, a light monitor which again is very typical that we put on most of their buildings. A light monitor is a fancy word for a skylight with no glass on top, we put windows in the a vertical surface but we’re… (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me Mr. Garrett, I’m sorry. Could you just hold that microphone up? It won’t pick up.

Mr. Garrett: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Garrett: A…you know, we try and daylight the various a portions of the building for a two reasons. One, its sustainable and it a also a it’s very good to look at the granite under daylight. That’s one of the other…that’s the major reason for so much glass on the building. We daylight the warehouse areas a…you know, which is a…a lead strategy. A lead meaning a leadership in environment energy, in an environmental design, green building, etc. A that kind of gives you a smattering of what we’re doing architecturally a…I will answer any questions you may have or if you want to hear from the engineer…

Chairperson Cardone: I want to start by a reading the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. And I want to ask if you are aware of their report to the Planning Board? And their recommendations?

Mr. Garrett: I have not seen that.

Chairperson Cardone: You haven’t seen that?

Mr. Garrett: Not a…is this old? Is this dated? 

Chairperson Cardone: A…the one to the Zoning Board is new. It’s dated September 14th and I’m not seeing a date on…

Mr. Donovan: I’m so sorry…

Ms. Gennarelli: September 6th
Chairperson Cardone: September…?

Ms. Gennarelli: 6th. 

Mr. Donovan: It’s dated October 4th.

Ms. Gennarelli: To the Planning Board it’s September 6th.

Chairperson Cardone: September 6th.

Mr. Donovan: But the ZBA is dated October 4th.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. Yes.

Mr. Donovan: It’s on the second page near the signature. 

Chairperson Cardone: I’ll start with the one to the Zoning Board. O.K. Orange County is in receipt of the above referenced request for an area variance and has found no evidence that significant inter-municipal or County-wide impacts would result from the granting of the area variance. The project site is within one of Orange Counties’ Priority Growth Areas. Therefore development that is sensitive to the surrounding resources is encouraged. Our office recommends that the Board make a decision only after weighing the balance to be realized by the Applicant against the potential detriment to the health safety and general welfare of the neighborhood and/or community. Additionally County Planning would like to include the following advisory comment, which was also suggested in our letter to the Town Planning Board, dated September 6, 2011: The Applicant two (2) floors associated with the proposed structure. Our office recommends the Board ask the applicant to evaluate utilizing a third floor associated with the office/retail area. This would potentially eliminate the need to apply for a variance for the rear yard setback as well as potentially limit the amount of impervious cover associated with the Proposed Action. In the event a third (3) story is deemed appropriate, the Applicant should ensure compliance with the height limitations of the Zoning Law and the Airport Overlay District. In an effort to aid in a fully informed review of the proposed area variance, our office has enclosed a copy of our response, dated September 6, 2011, to the Planning Board’s referral of the sketch site plan. Please note that County Planning reserves its official recommendation to the Planning Board until such time that the proposed action progresses past the sketch plan phase and full engineered drawings are available. That’s their recommendation. There’s a rather lengthy report to the Planning Board and a…if you don’t have copies a…

Mr. Cordisco: We haven’t been back to the Planning Board because they referred us over. We made our application here in September and we’re here now before you now so actually unfortunately we haven’t gotten a copy. If you had an additional copy we would be happy to take it. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: Or…or I can call the Planning Board Chairman and get a copy from him.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Garrett: In response to the comments…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Garrett: …a from the County a…a couple of things, one, putting an extra story on the building really is not going to allow us functionally occupy that lower level again as I explained adding…its not the amount of floor we’re trying to achieve. Yeah, we could put a story above that lower section if we wanted to. It’s the movement of the slab and ability of…to install those cranes in the building and make the most a…beneficial use of the property. A…in…in given its size and shape so a…I don’t think the recommendation of adding a third floor although we might have a more valuable building at the end of the day is terribly appropriate given the functionality that we’re trying to achieve inside the building. With respect to the a…some of the other issues about the a…a…potential detriment to the public health safety and welfare I’d offer the following a…and some of the goals of zoning, some of the origins of Zoning Ordinances are really to ensure a…that adequate light and air is provided to the neighborhood a…and that’s one of the reasons, one of several reasons but that was one of the origins of having setbacks, yard setbacks. I don’t want to get into a long dissertation but Zoning Ordinances started in Cities that’s why you see setbacks in buildings in New York City. In our case the variance we’re seeking is really on the north side of the building adjoining a an Interstate Highway which probably has a right of way of several hundred feet so the impact to the light and air by…if this Board chose to grant us this relieve would be de minimis, if any, because we’re really against the highway its not like we’re blocking necessary light and air for the public health safety and welfare. A second, another a goal of of planning and zoning is to a create a desirable visual environment. A we have an industrial building here a which if you are go on the inside is a you know an active fabrication facility. But we think by the articulation, the inclusion of curved elements, the stepping of the building, the working with the terrain that we are creatively integrating this building from an aesthetic standpoint and again we think that that would a tend to a minimize any kind of impairment of the zone plan a that you might have to consider when deliberating on whether the variance could be granted so in my professional opinion I believe the variances could be granted without causing any substantial detriment to the public health safety and welfare or impairment of your zoning.

Mr. Manley: If I may interject and ask you then why would the County I guess a bring to our Board’s attention their potential concern with respect to increasing the amount of the impervious surface a for the proposed site plan that could potentially result in, you know, increased storm water runoff, flooding, streambed erosion. I don’t think they are necessarily concerned with what you just mentioned. I think they’re concerned with regard to potentially going with a second floor is to create more impervious surface to allow the absorption of rain water, etc. The Quassaick Creek happens to be just a little bit a on the other side of the parking lot which a…that is considered a critical watershed. It’s been identified by the County as being a critical watershed. So I think that is one of their concerns.  

Mr. Garrett: I am going to defer to the engineers on that. We’ve had, I can tell you I’ve participated in a meetings with the Army Corp of Engineers regarding the wetlands issue and the creek at the west end but again I’m not an engineer nor would I ever pretend to be an engineer and I will defer to the civil engineer on that. However, I would point out that we are well within your Zoning Ordinance with respect to impervious coverage a…and this is zoned for this type of use and anticipates a, you know, a building of a, you know, this kind of size. So even with the variance relief that we’re seeking on a setback a…again the…it…it…it is not excessable over building and I…I try to emphasize that before and we’re not building this bigger because we just want bigger. We could go up another floor although I would point out there are some height limitations as well in your Ordinance. A…and we’ve analyzed that, average grade and one of the reasons we stepped that building down to match the…the slope of the site is to a…insure we wouldn’t have any kind of building height variance. A third floor as they point out could potentially seek that kind of…seek that type of relief.

Mr. Manley: Right and one of the things that we have to look at as…as a Board and that I’ll be looking at is, is there another way to accomplish this without having to request a variance. If the answer to that is yes and it can easily be accommodated then the granting of a variance would not be in…in my estimation something that I would want to grant because you could…you have another option. You know, there is another option on the table so that’s why I need to be understanding of the fact that you’re telling me you can’t put a second floor on there. It doesn’t work with your operation. Is that your testimony?

Mr. Garrett: That is correct. The fabrication a…and storage of the granite would not work on multi-levels in the building. It needs to be on one level with large gantry cranes which need a certain clearance underneath the gantry crane. It needs to be twenty-three feet beneath the steel to accommodate the gantry crane, the hoist as it were and lifting the slabs over the eight foot slabs that would be resting on the floor slab. The other thing is we’re storage of granite. A…we actually looked at the possibility a…of storing granite on the upper level, on the roof of the building. We dismissed that because the loading of such a commodity was absolutely excessive to a…to the structure and would really put an extreme hardship on our client a…to minimize the a, you know, that setback. By squeezing that building down if we just made the building smaller should the Board decide not to grant the variance it would scuttle the project. There’s just…there needs…this is actually somewhat smaller than the typical facilities we’ve been doing with All Granite. The buildings we’ve been doing are in the seventy to a hundred thousand square foot floor area. We’re at a thirty-nine thousand square feet so we’re…you know, its one of their smaller facilities but we believe that its large enough, there’s a large enough floor area that it will be a successful endeavor and they’ve identified this as a target…target market. So hopefully I’ve answered your question. It…it just wouldn’t work for us to add a floor.

Mr. Cordisco: It may be helpful for us to turn this over to Mr. Dates so that he can discuss stormwater issues. My understanding is is that the project is being designed to the most current DEC standards. The DEC came out in 2010 with a new design manual that required more on site retainment of stormwater a…and that manual was actually went into effect in March 2011. They don’t call it the 2011 manual; they call it the 2010 manual. But I think at this point, you know, Mr. Dates could touch on that.

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me. Ms. Chairperson, I’d like to interject a report that we received and if you want to read it it’s the one that is undersigned by Chad Wade, dated September 6, 2011. A…and there’s a series of things here to the total of ten items that were recommended in this report…

Chairperson Cardone: Those were items that were recommended to the Planning Board. I was covering the ones, the recommendation to our Board. These are issues that they would have to take up with the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Well some of the things I see in here I feel are very pertinent to what we’re looking to rule on here and I see a crossfire here of at least half the items that are listed here so if its all right with our Board and everybody here for the benefit of the public, for the developer and for my colleagues I would prefer that this be read into the record because I think there’s some very important issues here. I’ll read the last one, number ten, which really struck me odd. The applicant has not proposed sanitary sewer facilities; the project is not within a designated Sewer District. Therefore a septic system may be necessary. The Crossroads Sewer District encompasses those parcels to the south of Brookside Farms Road. Our office recommends the Board communicate with the Town Board as to the possibility of annexing the project site into the Sewer District. Now that’s just one of ten items here that have a lot of bad stuff in here but the criticality of it being adjacent to the Quassaick Creek and the fact that this 100 year floodplain line is actually right on your property with a loading dock with tractor-trailers and granite and all the mung that comes out of them and I don’t know how well versed everybody else is but there’s some very bad things that ooze out of granite and with its proximity to the Creek which is a main water supply feed. It’s a twenty mile long stream that starts in Plattekill, New York and dumps into the Hudson River. It services aquifers along that twenty mile stretch to Plattekill, to the Town of Newburgh, to our main water source of backup the Chadwick Lake four hundred and fifty acre reservoir. It joins with Gidneytown Creek, Quassaick Creek and then dumps into the Hudson River twenty miles later. While it’s passing through all of this stuff I see things here that I can’t even believe would come from an engineer’s desk. Number one the fact that you have the loadings and the fabrication shop at the end of the Creek where approximately thirty thousand feet of your property is in that floodplain and then you intend to put the dumpster right on the edge of that Creek’s floodplain as well as having four loading docks and all the bells and whistles for your warehouse. I have some questions for the nuts and bolts guy here.  

Chairperson Cardone: I just would like to remind you that our focus is very narrow. We are looking at an area variance.

Mr. Hughes: I know.

Chairperson Cardone: These issues right here must be discussed with the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Well then in that respect then if you don’t want me to read the rest of this I would say that I call for my colleagues to read this before we go any further. There’s a lot of bad stuff in here. Now I realize that we’re here to rule on what they bring before us but I’m not satisfied that that’s sufficient. This 100 year floodplain is on that property. It covers a good portion of that western end of this building. What do you do with your milling when the goo that comes out of cutting the granite? Where does that go? You don’t have a sewer that you’re connected too.

Mr. Garrett: No, the…the fabrication of the granite a…occurs inside the building and is in containment vessels and we’ve actually had this vessel approved in Suffolk County, New York. Suffolk County on Long Island is a single source aquifer. I do a lot of work out there. It has some of the most stringent environmental laws in the nation. Its adopted portions of Article 7 Hazardous Material are adopted by California. They refer back to, which is odd for California, to refer to any other jurisdiction…   

Mr. Hughes: So is this a reclamation unit that you’re speaking of?

Mr. Garrett: Yeah, the saws recirc the water, it’s in a vessel, the vessel is lined with an approved containment liner that will prevent any kind of leaching from escaping. Double wall protection, it will…the fabrication will not discharge any wastewater into your Sewer District or it certainly…we wouldn’t be able to get a SPEDES Permit, I don’t think to discharge industrial waste on this site. So I hope I allay your fears. It is a closed system…

Mr. Hughes: Well it’s not fear, it is a concern I could…believe I know what goes on with these systems and that’s what raised my question to begin with. The other thing that I see that’s going on here is that you have a sub-terrainian collection system under this parking lot where the loading docks are. 

Mr. Garrett: I’m going to defer to the civil engineer. I’m just with the building. 

Mr. Hughes: Where does that go?

Mr. Garrett: I just the other thing with respect to any kind of dust in the building. We have dust collectors that collect the dust, Torit Donaldson; it’s a unit we’ve used in other facilities. I’ve used it in pharmaceutical facilities. We will not have discharge or emissions to the atmosphere or into the ground from the operations inside the building.

Mr. Hughes: So your fabrication room is self-contained?

Mr. Garrett: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And is it sealed off from the warehouse? How do you get the granite from the warehouse into that sealed…?

Mr. Garrett: It doesn’t need to be sealed off from the warehouse because the air movement inside the building, we set up the dust collector at one side of the building and we put fans on the other side of the building which convey the air and create an air flow and the fabrication occurs very close to where the dust collector is. So we are not just…you’re not walking into this fog of granite dust or stone dust shall I say? It’s very actually very localized because the closer we keep the dust collector unit to the saw the less a…effort the…the…the a suction fan needs to exhibit therefore we can keep the fans smaller and saving money obviously for my client. We’ve done this. It isn’t the first time we’ve done it and I can stand here and say you will not have any discharge from the water saws or from the dust from the granite into your sewer system. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. But I would like to add this too into the record. The Quassaick Creek is a critical watershed to the northeastern portion of the County. The Creek is listed as a priority waterbody within the lower Hudson River Basin by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation. The impairment has been deemed stressed due to combined sewer overflow and stormwater runoff in this area. Additionally portions of the watershed downstream from the Project Site are utilized for municipal drinking water supplies. I’d like to add that some of them are upstream as well. Our office recommends that the Planning Board request “Better 

Site Design” techniques. See comment no. 5, to insure stormwater quality and quantity protection of the Quassaick Creek from post development runoff. Downstream to the south of the Project Site, directly across Brookside Farms Road are NYSDEC mapped wetlands, NB-29. Although the mapped wetlands do not cross to the north of Brookside Farms Road, a check zone related to wetland complex does. Our office recommends that the Planning Board inquire as to whether or not the on-site wetlands may be jurisdictional under the NYSDEC. If they are, then a 100-foot buffer would need to be added to the Site Plan.  At minimum, there are eight other items in here I would like to go at length but at the request of my Chairperson I’ll refrain at this point.

Mr. McKelvey: But this…this all has to…this all has to be done at the Planning Board. This…this was addressed to the Planning Board not us.

Mr. Hughes: But it nonetheless has to be a coordinated effort. It doesn’t appear as though everyone is speaking with each other. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments…?

Ms. Drake: Yes, I do.

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead. 

Ms. Drake: Did you purchase the…or the All Granite purchased the property in 2009, a…did they look at whether it being an odd shaped property that it would fit their facility adequately without needing any variances? I mean, it appears that if you’ve looked around at any other parcels in the Town of Newburgh or wherever you would look…looking to build this that you would have researched it enough not to be creating your own hardship. 

Mr. Garrett: Well the property does have certain very beneficial characteristics…

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you get closer to the mic, please?

Mr. Garrett: I’m sorry. The very beneficial characteristics that they have they look for in a property, All Granite, and its really the highway frontage which really attracted them to this property and there have been other development plans a…for this property. I think more intensive developments, the Harley Davidson a…and the a…there was a a three-story office building I believe proposed on this site previously which might have more effects a…certainly from a discharge of sanitary sewage a…than this building will. A…we were aware that there were some issues with the building and as we developed the plans we looked at various ways to mitigate those a…but the decision was made in 2009 that it was worth a…requesting this variance because in our opinion we felt that the variance was a…not a…going to cause a substantial detriment to the…you know, to the what I said before, the zoning, zone impairment or a…

Ms. Drake: Right, that…


Mr. Garrett: …public health safety and welfare.

Ms. Drake: You do show a nice looking building facing 84 a… and you seem to be focusing on how it looks towards 84. What is the other side that’s like when you’re driving up to the building going to look like? Do you have a color rendition of that or anything to…to know what that looks like?

Mr. Garrett: We show what the…as you approach the building, Brookside…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you have to talk into the microphone. 

Mr. Garrett: I’m sorry. You’ll be looking at the front entrance of the building, again its glass and a series of granite. We have granite elements on that portion of the building. We also have granite elements on the Brookside Farm façade of the building a…which again we don’t have the fancy colored rendering a…but we do have a flat elevation which shows the granite along here and a masonry a…foundation wall and in meeting with the a…PepsiCo people they indicated that they would a…they would like to see some brick accents along the Brookside Farms façade which we’re amenable to doing. Kind of to relate the two buildings, they have the rose brick on their building, we felt it would be very appropriate to not mimic or imitate but more like to be individualists but again we thought by introducing those brick elements combined with the glass and there is a significant amount of glass along the Brookside Farms building that we are creating a aesthetically…an aesthetically pleasing façade as you drive down Brookside Farms Road.

Ms. Drake: So therefore you wouldn’t consider putting the shaped…the arch shaped window on the other side to reduce that variance, putting it on the Brookside that wouldn’t…?

Mr. Garrett: It would create a variance, it create a second variance along Brookside.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Donovan: They’re right at the…they’re right at the end.

Mr. Garrett: It is a, you know, the site does have some hardships to it.

Ms. Drake: Yeah, you’ve basically created your own hardship by purchasing the lot.

Mr. Donovan: A…it…I’m sorry not to…I want to because we’re talking a lot tonight or seem to be talking a lot about hardships or unnecessary hardships so I just want to kind of if I can kind of reorient ourselves in terms of the standard because historically the standard for an area variance was what’s called an unnecessary hardship. A…that was changed by statute, I used to like to say recently but probably fifteen years ago, we have the five factors that we go through now. It’s a balancing test. We balance the benefit to the applicant if the variance were granted versus the detriment to the community if the variance were granted. One of the five factors is whether or not the hardship confronting the applicant is self-created or not. You’ll recall in the context of an area variance that is not a bar to relief just one of the factors to be considered. In the context of a use variance it’s an absolute bar to relief. So sometimes I do find Zoning Boards that I represent kind of backsliding into the historical, is the…what’s the hardship here, and I just want to emphasize its only one of the five factors a…that…that we need to consider. 

Mr. Cordisco: It’s really, its one of those difficult, you know, concepts in the sense that almost every application that’s before you is self-created in the sense that someone wants to do something that doesn’t comply with…with your law.

Mr. Donovan: If…if I…I’m sorry to interrupt. I think it might be helpful though if…if someone could explain why you can’t shave ten feet off the building and then if you could tell us what’s in…what’s in the neighborhood, I mean maybe, the Board’s all been out there. Are there any three story buildings in the neighborhood? I mean, would this building fit in the neighborhood and what’s the functional reason you can’t…you can’t shave off the ten feet? Because I think that speaks to the…to the five factors that the Board needs to consider. 

Mr. Hughes: There’s another factor that’s floating over this project as well…

Mr. Donovan: The Hughes factor?

Mr. Hughes: Not, well no, that’s another one of them. That’s the worst factor to have to deal with. The airport flight zone, you are right 0927 taxiway coming right over the top of this building. So you have a problem with height and reflection and glass and a lot of other things as well. 

Mr. Garrett: We’re well within the a…height limitations in your Zoning Ordinance, the building is…

Mr. Donovan: I just want to get something…I mean the Orange County Department of Planning has brought it up, the Board has asked about it. I think from…from, you know, where I sit it would be more helpful to tell us why you can’t shave ten feet off the building and comply.

Mr. Garrett: The problem is really the girth of the building as you get to the east end of the building it just doesn’t  allow us to put two…two forty-foot bays which is really what’s critical to the functionality of the warehouse and fabrication space. As I explained before there needs to be some sort of critical mass for All Granite to make the investment on this property to create the manufacturing job and we’re undersized from what they would like to do but we need two forty-foot bays for the majority of the building. Based on the constraints of the property those two forty-foot bays make that…that ten-foot relief critical to the success of the design of the building. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. And can you tell us the distance of…from the edge of the building to the paved portion of Route 84? Because we’re measuring from your property line but it may be helpful to indicate how far you are from the paved portion of 84.

Mr. Hughes: There’s a ramp behind that building before it gets to Route 84. 

Mr. Garrett: From the exit ramp…

Ms. Gennarelli: You are going to have to speak directly into that microphone.

Mr. Garrett: From the exit ramp, the western end of the exit ramp we are in excess of fifty feet…in excess of fifty-five feet to the a…to the beginning of that exit ramp from our property line. The building would be another a…

Ms. Gennarelli: Tip it up, tip it up.

Mr. Garrett: We’re a…close to a hundred feet away from, I hate to use word cart way because it isn’t a cart way technically of Route 84 but from the paved surface of that exit ramp.

Mr. Donovan: And one last thing for me anyway just to satisfy my curiosity. I know its not a ZBA issue relative to the…to the sewer a…but I do see a, I don’t know if you just overlaid your plan on an older map but the shaded portion of the map indicated the existence of a sanitary sewer easement and two manholes on the property. Are you in a Sewer District?  

Mr. Hughes: They are not a member of it.

Mr. Dates: Justin Dates from Maser Consulting. No we are not a…Mr. Wade from the…

Mr. Hughes: Chad Wade.

Mr. Dates: Yeah, he is correct. We are outside of the Sewer District a…the sewer runs directly through our site. We would be looking in…looking to connect into that sewer by way of a outside user agreement a…with the Town and the City of Newburgh. We’re not proposing a onsite septic. 

Mr. Hughes: Is there Town water available for you to connect?

Mr. Dates: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: And you’re going to do that? 

Mr. Dates: Correct. We are inside in the Water District and would be willing to connect to that as well.

Mr. Hughes: And…and your reference to the IDA, what was that conversation about? Tax abatements or something or…?

Mr. Dates: I wasn’t a part of that.

Mr. Hughes: Is the owner here yet, Dominic?

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, Mr. Deja is here.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I didn’t know if that was him or…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Please use the microphone.

Mr. Deja: Good afternoon. My name is Robert Deja. I am General Manager for All Granite & Marble. So the question about IDA right? A…yes, we applied we were basically thinking that the a…project would be beneficial for the area and we were counting on some a…tax abatement for the…these other supplies a…that we’re going to be purchasing to construct the building. 

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Cordisco do you have any comments about the additional hundred foot buffer zone as required by the new book? 

Mr. Cordisco: The a…we are not aware of any changes in the DEC maps. They are not on this site and a…and a…the one hundred foot buffer would only apply if DEC was to formally amend their map. 

Mr. Hughes: Maybe I read something different than you did but I thought that they did and for the benefit of the public and the Board as well this project on what would be the northwest corner has a twenty-foot easement that sort of circumnavigates that corner and that parking lot arrangement and lays right in the Hundred Year Floodplain. There is another twenty-foot easement that comes almost perpendicular and almost heading directly north to south out on to Tarr Road. I wouldn’t bet a lot of money on it but in the back of mind that this portion which is partially on your property is part of a designated parkland in the Town of Newburgh and as far as I know it hasn’t been mitigated or replaced with an alternate parkland to replace that footprint.

Mr. Cordisco: I’m not aware of that issue, Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: I see. Maybe we should do some more homework then because there’s a lot of things that don’t add up to what I know. 

Mr. Cordisco: I appreciate your insights but we’re before is for a rear yard setback.

Mr. Hughes: I understand that.

Mr. Manley: I have a question as it relates to what you mentioned about sanitary sewer on site. You indicated that you’re plan is not to have on site sanitary, correct?

Mr. Dates: A, yes sub-surface a…septic system we’re not looking into a septic system.

Mr. Manley: O.K. so if the Board were to grant a variance for what you’re looking for and in the vent you were not able to get outside user status that kind of shoots the whole project down? Is that…would that be correct then, or…?

Mr. Dates: A…I mean, we haven’t investigated an on site septic so I don’t believe that it would shoot the project down. We would have to do some further investigation but right now the proposal is for Municipal sewer.

Mr. Hughes: But I don’t see how you’d be able to get an on-site septic system that would provide what you’re looking for. How many people are going to be working in the building? 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, you have to talk into the microphone or it won’t be in the record. 

Mr. Garrett: It’s about fifteen to twenty people working inside the building that includes the office staff and the fabrication people in the building. You have to…the installers come in the building in the morning and then they are gone, you know, they leave. They go install counter tops so it would create more jobs potentially than the twenty people that are there but that is what the facility is designed to handle.  With respect to parking, toilet facilities, I mean, we’ve analyzed all this and a…I again I would…I’ll turn it over to Justin but we’ve had meetings with the Army Corp of Engineers. It’s their wetland, they made the determination that it’s their wetland not a DEC wetlands so that’s part of the reason my client bought the building in 2009 and we’re coming to you in 2011 we have been doing homework. It’s not like we’re just saying well this sounds good and I’ll turn it over to Justin on that because he was more intimate than I was with that discussion.

Mr. Hughes: Is there a dossier available about the Corps…

Mr. Dates: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …findings?

Mr. Dates: Yes. We had the Corp a…we flagged the wetlands, we had the Corp on site, a…earlier this year. They provided a jurisdictional determination in September 19th of this year for the wetlands that are depicted on a...the site plan that you have. So they are under Army Corp a…jurisdiction.

Mr. Manley: Now the reason for my question, the sewer question was, in the event you can’t a…hook up to the sewer and you had to go with an on-site septic would you have to shrink the building at all in order to make the septic fit? And if that was the case would that then mean you wouldn’t need the variance?

Mr. Dates: At this time I really can’t give you a definitive answer on that because that’s not something that we…

Mr. Cordisco: It…it just hasn’t been designed, Mr. Manley. I mean we’re not designing this project to use an on-site septic system. You know the project is dependent as you point out on connecting to the Town’s Municipal sewer system. A…and we’re proposing to do that as an outside user. A…that obligation a…would be a condition of any eventual Planning Board site plan approval, the same way that any other outside agency approvals would be necessary. A…and of course if we can’t, after we get site plan  approval from the Planning Board to whatever reason if we cannot obtain one of those outside agency approvals such as an outside user agreement for sewer then we’d have to go back to the drawing board. But I think you’re asking us to do is go back to the drawing board now answer an eventuality that we’re not planning on. We believe that we are going to be able to connect as an outside user.

Mr. McKelvey: You also have to deal with the City of Newburgh.

Mr. Cordisco: Correct. We have to get a will-serve letter from the City of Newburgh. 

Mr. Hughes: And that has to be reviewed by the County as well. 

Mr. Cordisco: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: As well as the Planning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: If I may and I…I realize that there’s a lot of stuff flying around here and some of it really isn’t any of our business however, I do like to take a look at the big picture so we don’t paint you guys in a corner and we don’t wind up painting the Town in the corner especially where it comes to water. Counsel, if I may? I’m asking for some advice from where you’re sitting. What is the best thing that we can do to move this project forward and make sure that Mr. Cordisco and crew has the opportunity to read all these things that we’re being cc’d on from many areas by the way the Quassaick Creek Commission is a very active commission in Orange County. They meet once a month; they have their eye on this. The City of Newburgh has their eye on this. Everybody up and down the pike has their eye on it. It is a critical thing. It feeds a huge aquifer in this part of the world and that’s where our fresh water comes from. So Counsel, can we give everybody time to make a better run at this thing and sharpen up their pencil or do we need to rule on this…

Mr. Cordisco: Well I…I…I can answer that for you Mr. Hughes…

Mr. Donovan: Well let me, if I…if I can cause here…here’s the way I think you got to analyze this. You really have two options when you…when they…they prepare their plan and they go in and they say for the building that we…to make our…our business work this is the size building that we want. So we’re going to go to the Planning Board, we’re going to give it a once over lightly and then we’re going to go get a…try to get a variance because if we can’t get our variance then we we’re back to the drawing board. That’s one alternative. The other alternative is to run all these other things out. Address all the ten items that the Planning Board has…I’m sorry, the Orange County Department of Planning has raised, address further issues that may result for it’s a…the properties proximity to the creek. Spend nine months a year in front of the Planning Board, have fully engineered plans and then come to us so they can answer all of these questions but run the risk of we say, you know what we’re not going to give you the variance. Sorry you spent all that time and money but you got to redesign something else. So I mean that…that’s the dilemma. Do we…do we…do they see if they can get the variance sooner before they spend all the time and money or do they answer all these questions and then come to us at the time where we could say, you know what you’re not entitled to the variance we’re not going to give it to you?

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so then in an ideal world if we were all speaking to each other and we know that the three Boards involved here don’t, is the front of this building put on the line because its in the envelop of the building where you can build? Or was that front line just arbitrary? Could you shift the whole building five-feet to the front onto Tarr Road and eliminate another five-feet in the back and give yourself some more room to jockey to get away from the stream? Or does that building have to be where it is because you’re using every inch of the building envelope space?

Mr. Dates: Mr. Hughes a…I think a…Mr. Garrett touched on that before. Basically the front setback is where it is from the property line. So we are…

Mr. Hughes: That’s the minimum for the building envelop?

Mr. Dates: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Dates: So we are, you know, within six-inches of that front setback line and therefore it creates the hardship on the a…the rear setback…

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Dates: If we were to do the five-foot adjustment then we would have a variance required in the front yard and for the rear yard. 

Mr. Hughes: The segmentation of the possibility of being connected to the sewer thing is the thing that scares the daylights out of me. If it gets to the point where you tell you no, where are we if we’ve given you the right to go ahead? Now we’re in a litigation and everything else. 

Mr. Garrett: I would just guess, is it the norm of this Board to grant a variance with conditions? Could that be a condition of your approval that the variance, you know, to secure the variance ultimately we need to obtain Planning Board approval so I think you have that protection quite frankly but if you want (inaudible) suspenders put a condition on approval that if we can’t get the a…sewer authority approval then, you know, we’d have to come back before this Board to reexamine the variance with a septic system or an on-site sanitary system depicted on our property. I don’t know if that makes you…gives a little bit more level of comfort. I…I don’t think we’d have a problem with that. 

Mr. Hughes: Well I think Mr. Cordisco would be the first to tell you that it’s difficult to condition approvals without having some more flack in the wind. I would rather see a more clean project with as few variance required…as few variances required as possible. Counsel?

Mr. Cordisco: We only require one variance. They only went before you for one variance and let’s…let’s be clear here what we’re talking about is 9.2 feet along the majority of the building that is over one hundred or approximately one hundred feet away from the edge of pavement of Interstate 84. That’s all we’re talking about. All…all the other… 

Mr. Hughes: The other part of its 20-feet.

Mr. Cordisco: Excuse me, excuse me, all of the other issues that you’ve laid out we have to address. We’re not skirting them. It’s just that as Mr. Donovan said we’re not in a position and I don’t think you can put us in a position of having…forcing us to give the answer to all of those issues at this time only to run the risk to come back to find out that you’re not going to grant the variance. This Board I realize that you have a great deal of discretionary power. It’s your decision as to whether or not we get a variance to allow us to do what we need to do here. We think that we’ve designed this. I realize that this is the first time that you’re seeing us but as Mr. Garrett said this is something that’s been in the works for the last two years and we’re trying to make this work the best way that we can and develop the site and use this site. Mr. Deja believes in this site. He bought it. So he’s made a commitment to being here in the Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Manley: Well my big concern which was just answered was…it has to do with septic. If you…if you don’t hook up to Town sewer and septic does come on site then I have an issue with the size of the building and granting the variance. However, if you take the septic out of it and you’re hooking up to sewer and you get your outside user I’m more apt to grant the variance. We’re not looking at a huge request here I mean you’re talking maybe eleven, twelve feet so I mean its not, in the grand scheme of things, its not huge so I’m O.K. with that as long as you hook up to the sewer and I just, you know, confirmed with counsel that if we…if we were to condition it based on that 

Mr. Cordisco: I think that… 

Mr. Manley: …then that solves the issue.

Mr. Cordisco: I think there is a nexus there. I understand your concern and because there is a nexus there I think you could condition any variance that you grant on that condition. So that if we didn’t achieve it then we would either…we would have two options at that point, redesign the building a…so that we didn’t need the variance anymore…

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Cordisco: …or we’d have to come back before you and explain what we are doing. In either even we’d have to comply. 

Mr. McKelvey: I…I agree with you Jim.

Ms. Drake: I’d like to ask another question, being you’ve got a large flat roof almost is a flat or pitch but the fact that you have a flat roof  along there have you entertained doing a Green roof for the structure to therefore make it so its not so close or so impacted on that…that setback with 84. 

Mr. Garrett: Yes, with a condition on that answer. We, as a matter of course, on all our buildings propose to use a reflective surface on that roof mainly because it decreases our cooling load. I’m not sure that’s really what you were asking. I’m not trying to be…skirt the issue. I think you’re talking about potential for plantings on the roof.

Ms. Drake: Correct.

Mr. Garrett: We certainly could give some consideration to including some a…you know, some live roof plantings on that roof. I don’t, you know again, we’re still very preliminary in the design of the building and like I said we’ll be before, if we are successful here and we go before your a…your Planning Board we understand they have a landscaping consultant who will push the envelop to put it kindly in terms of making…ensuring that we have a green build…a land…a properly landscaped facility.

Ms. Drake: Right I’m just saying that it being you’re in the Quassaick watershed there, having a green roof to do additional treatment for stormwater. You’ve got a lot of impervious surface. I know that’s not our…our purview but I’m just throwing out there the possibility of treating impervious surface with a green roof being that you have a large flat area.

Mr. Cordisco: We…we…we can evaluate it. I think is the short answer.

Mr. Garrett: Absolutely and we’ve done green roofs. We are familiar with the bio-filtering, etc. There’s some real benefits to it. Thank you for the suggestion.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, would you please go to the microphone and state your name. 

Mr. Wells: My name is Robert Wells, (neighbor) Town of Newburgh. I have a hard time getting out now with traffic that crosses our land down there. How are they going to put a big building like that and be carrying more traffic? Pepsi Cola don’t even come out that road. They do it down below. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are you saying that the Pepsi Cola does not come out on Brookside?

Mr. Wells: It does not come out on Brookside Farm Road. They have their own entrance down by Gross. And that road gets used constantly. If they ever put a meter on it and see how much traffic goes over that road. I mean your point about the (inaudible) is the best points there ever was but the road would have to be considered to I would think. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have an answer to that or…?

Mr. Dates: I think so.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Dates: The a…the traffic route would be mostly in the morning, if I’m correct, with deliveries, four to five trucks.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry. You’ve got to use the microphones.

Mr. Deja: I believe I can address traffic a little bit based on the experience with our current sites. We have a site of that size would require three to four pickup trucks for the installers and they leave in the morning around 7-8 o’clock and a…then we will have a granite delivery, 30,000 sq. ft. warehouse would require one truck delivery per day, I mean per week. I’m sorry. So there will be one trailer truck delivering granite on a weekly basis, one truck per week. And then we’re going to have a…customers coming in, the maximum for this facility would be fifteen clients daily so I don’t believe for a site of that size in the commercial zoning the traffic impact would be great. I mean I think it’s minimal.

Chairperson Cardone: And that is an issue that should be brought up to the Planning Board also. 

Mr. Wells: O.K. thank you

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other comments from the public? O.K. I’d like to read into the record a letter from Pepsi Cola. 

Pepsi Cola of the Hudson Valley of One Pepsi Way in Newburgh has reviewed the site plan produced by Maser Consulting for Marble and has no problem with the set-backs as described. We have met with them separately regarding the CCR on the final design of their building and feel those talks are going along very smoothly. We’re looking forward to having them as our neighbor. If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call me. Tim Tenney, President & CEO, Pepsi Cola of the Hudson Valley. 

Do we have any other questions or comments?

Mr. Hughes: I have a comment if I could? There was another agency that recommended that the NYS Natural Heritage Program be contact for threatened and endangered species. The reliance of the NYSDEC Environmental Resource Mapper should not be deemed sufficient. And because it’s a Federal and Army Corp I would like to see a report on that because I know the criticality of the a…wildlife that’s in there both flora and fauna are having some problems there. We have Marketplace right up stream from you guys on the other side of 84 and a tremendous amount of impervious stuff heats up the water even before it gets site. A…the other thing, you’re going to be connected to Town water in this project and if you’re going to get the outside user agreement and that’s all part of the package that relieves some of it but I would like to put a request in formally through our Board that the applicant address the letter of September 6th undersigned by Chad Wade, planner from Orange County along with a response to the other County report that our Chairperson read into the record. 

Mr. Dates: Can I just point a one some…one thing out?

Chairperson Cardone: Sure.

Mr. Dates: I’ll have the talks with Wade towards impervious coverage and stormwater a…in this Code we’re allowed a lot surface coverage of 80%. We are proposing 43.6%...a…about…about half. Stormwater of course, is an issue and as Mr. Cordisco pointed out we have to meet the new 2010 Permit. We will be held to that…to that Permit and the Planning Board will hold us to that. A…these initial areas of stormwater right now are preliminary. We’re going to work out a…lows at or less than what are running off the site as is. So I…I just wanted to point out where the impervious coverage and how and a…I believe we’re are at about 50 % of what‘s allowed.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Any questions or comments? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.
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ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011   (Resumption for decision: 8:54 PM) 



ALL GRANITE & MARBLE CORP. 
BROOKSIDE FARM ROAD, NBGH







(97-1-20.2) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a warehouse/fabrication facility along with office and retail use. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application All Granite & Marble Corp., seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a warehouse/fabrication facility along with office and retail use. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a Negative Declaration? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion for a Negative Declaration.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey:  

Mr. Hughes: I have a discussion question.

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel.

Mr. Donovan: It’s up to the Chair.

Chairperson Cardone: Go ahead. Ron, I said go ahead.

Mr. Hughes: How can we declare a Negative Dec if we don’t know the answers to some of the questions that were cited with the proximity to the water systems?

Mr. Donovan: Well, understand this is what’s called an Uncoordinated Review so the other items that were discussed that do not relate to the rear yard setback variance are items for the Planning Board. The Planning Board is conducting their own Uncoordinated…or they would be a Coordinated Review with involved agencies besides us during which time those items have to be considered. The Negative Declaration or the Uncoordinated Review of the SEQRA that this Board has to undertake relates to the rear yard setback variance and if you feel, if the Board feels that you have sufficient information that the project being essentially tend to one area twenty feet shy of the required setback would not create any adverse impact in the environment then you can issue a Negative Declaration.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for clarifying that. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are we ready for the vote now?

Ms. Gennarelli: Are we ready?

Mr. Hughes: I think so. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I…I from my own personal perspective of this project I would feel more comfortable if the Board chose to approve this project that there would be conditions set forth in regard to the questions that were raised tonight and that a list of those questions be written in a letter and the minutes that we record for this session tonight be put forward to the Town Board and to the Planning Board. There was many issues there with the proximity to Creek and the floodplain and the question of the possibility of the existence park at that corner a…I would feel much more comfortable if those conditions were affixed to this project if it were to be approved. 

Chairperson Cardone: Well certainly the Planning Board and the Town Board have access to our minutes they are on the website…

Mr. Hughes: But do they read them?


Chairperson Cardone: Oh, we can’t force them to read it but…

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know about that. 

Chairperson Cardone: …but we can certainly send a copy along with any decision that we render.

Ms. Drake: I’d like to have a condition of an approval should we go that direction that if they cannot connect to the Town/City sewer system that the variance expire or that they have to come back with a new application to us with the septic system.

Mr. Manley: I…I would be…I would be O.K. with condition the approval on connecting to the Municipal sewer.

Mr. Donovan: And…and I think if you want to attach a condition it should be a specific condition. If the Board would like to provide admonishment, if you will, to the Planning Board to review the minutes of the items discussed at the meeting you could provide such admonishment but you got to condition the variance on something you need to condition on something very specific as in the case we discussed tonight, a tie into Municipal sewer.      

Mr. Manley: I think that protects this Board that in the event that they are unable to obtain the sewer connection that it allows us to take another look at the potential affects on the environment and the…the residents in the surrounding area if they have to discharge into a septic system. But I don’t see a real big sixteen, seventeen feet request in a variance I really don’t think that that’s excessive. I mean if they were looking for a forty-five foot variance and maybe five feet from the property line that would be a little bit different but I don’t really see a huge…I mean, we’re specifically looking at the variance for the…for the rear yard. 

Ms. Drake: Against 84 versus another highway which may not have such a wide grass area between the road surface.

Mr. Manley: And the concerns of the neighbors was one was traffic which is outside of our review however hopefully the Planning Board will…will look at the comments of that individual at our meeting and take that into consideration. And they had positive comments from Pepsi so there was really no other negative public comments except the one with regard to traffic.  

Mr. Hughes: Now I do know that Pepsi goes out through the industrial park their south of them and I don’t know if this is a phase of that same industrial park complex where they would have the right to use that road as well and that may be another alternate where they could use that same method of ingress and egress to this project.

Mr. Manley: There’s like a rear fence there I think.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, I was going to say there’s a rear gate in off of…

Mr. Hughes: So you can’t get in there off of the other road?


Mr. Manley: I don’t think so.

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Hughes: You are not connected to that project?

Mr. Garrett: No.   

Mr. Hughes: Well I…I agree with what my colleagues mentioned about the segmentation of this thing without knowing whether the outside user agreement would be granted and if the connection were to be assured would be the first step and the first condition that I see the most important one. And I also agree that in the big picture the variance they are asking for isn’t anything substantial. It’s not a huge number in the big picture on the conditions of the lot and where it is and these are all part of the things we need to look at in balancing. But I’m not real happy about how close those loading docks and those dumpsters are to stream. That fifty or that 100 year floodplain is thirty thousand square feet on the property itself right up to the loading docks. I’m very concerned about the criticality of the stream.

Mr. Manley: But the County being an involved agency is going to have input and that input will have to be addressed in the SEQRA at the Planning Board level. They can’t not address it. It has been brought up by the County and they are going to have to address that in the…you know, in the Planning Board. They have no choice and if they address it, you know, to the satisfaction of the Board then more than likely if they can’t mitigate the issue they’re going to have to, you know, the Planning Board has the ability to deny the project.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, the Planning Board can’t bypass that because that’s a big list.

Mr. Manley: Right.   

Mr. Hughes: I would say that between the two letters that were written between the County in advisement of this project that if they were responded to and all of those items were addressed I would like that to be part of the conditions too because there’s just too much stuff floating out there.

Mr. Manley: Well I’ll…I’ll make a motion for approval and condition it with respect to Mrs. Drake’s input as well with respect to connecting the Town sewer as a condition of the variance. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second that motion.

Mr. Hughes: Discussion? Counsel, do we have any way that we can fix that…that condition of outside user be approved before this project move anything further? Or is it all on one sweep that we give them the variance with that condition being posted?

Mr. Donovan: Well the motion is to give them that variance with that condition which means they could proceed to the Planning Board, they could get site plan approval but they couldn’t draw a Building Permit to put a shovel in the ground until they were connected to the Town sewer.

Mr. Hughes: So the outside sewer agreement is primus?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can I take a vote?

Chairperson Cardone: Did we have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, I seconded it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes? Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON



MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JAMES CAMPBELL, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:04 PM)


ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:07 PM) 



MARY MONAHAN



34 BRIDLE PATH, NBGH







(58-3-17) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Mary Monahan.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-five registered letters, thirty were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Ms. Gennarelli: You can tilt it (the mic) down towards you or take it off. 

Chairperson Cardone: Just remember to speak right into that microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to get close. You’ve got to get close.

Ms. Monahan: Hi.

Mr. Getchell: My name is Frank Getchell and this is my Aunt Mary. I’m helping her out here with the application.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you get closer Frank?

Mr. Getchell: Sure. Can you hear now? O.K. We’re here a regarding a variance for area in connection with a setback variance on a front yard a…from 40-feet to 28-feet 8-inches. This is for a property located at a...34 Bridal Path. Specifically what we’re looking for is a…and the house was built in the early 70’s, has the standard type contractor’s poured cement stairs, a small walkway and another set of stairs down to the driveway. A…she’s looking to a…basically improve that walkway, pretty much stay within the same footprint but to elevate it a little bit. One…for two reasons, one being she is getting along in age, the steps are very kind of high for her to be able to kind of get up to, in fact, is a probably about a good foot maybe over a foot lift between the platform of the current porch and the threshold into the front yard. And she has a grandson who has muscular dystrophy and so it becomes pretty difficult for him to be able to get into house a…via the front door which is really the only way to get in. If he goes into the garage he still has to go up stairs and the stairs there are a little more difficult. So what she would like to do is basically put in a wooden type platform and stairs where the stairs are a little bit lower more like a, you know, lips of about six inches makes it easier for him plus if she, he has to use the wheelchair to get in his parents actually basically pull him backwards to get up the stairs and to get into the front. That’s why we’re here tonight. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: Are making any kind of a way you can blow that thing out if it has to evolve to a ramp in the future or has that not been considered? 

Ms. Monahan: No that hasn’t been considered.

Ms. Drake: Please use…please use the microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Mary, you’ve got to get to the microphone.

Ms. Monahan: Oh, I’m sorry. No that hasn’t been considered.

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m just pointing it out because it may evolve to that, you know.

Ms. Monahan: I’m hoping not.

Mr. Hughes: I hope not either but O.K. it’s just a question.

Mr. Getchell: I appreciate that. Usually when he visits his parents come and right now he is still in a position where he can lift his own legs to be able to get up the stairs but we have one of those newer wheel chairs and we’re actually able to pull him up and so I think that’s why she’s kind of inclined with this kind of stairs so it also fits in more to the fabric of the neighborhood also. There are a couple of other neighbors who have done similar things with their stairs and their walk up but I appreciate the suggestion. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. McKelvey: I don’t think you’re asking for too much. It looks like it’s a necessity. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: Looks like the railings on the wooden deck would be a little stronger than the ones that you have there also…

Ms. Monahan: Yes.

Ms. Drake: …which will be helpful. I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Getchell: Thank you. 






(Time Noted – 8:10 PM)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:04 PM) 



MARY MONAHAN



34 BRIDLE PATH, NBGH







(58-3-17) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Mary Monahan, 34 Bridal Path, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think it will fit in with the neighborhood because there’s other porches there. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON



MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JAMES CAMPBELL, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:05 PM)


ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:10 PM) 



MIKE & SHERRI O’DONNELL

15 STEWART AVENUE, NBGH







(99-2-15) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to keep a prior built kitchen addition and 2nd floor addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Mike and Sherri O’Donnell.  

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair in regards to this applicant I am going to be a…recusing myself so as not to have a conflict.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I’d just like to mention to the applicant, we have to have a vote of four to have anything approved and with Mr. Manley recusing himself and two people absent it means that all four of us would have to agree. So it’s up to you…

Mr. O’Donnell: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …if you would like us to hear this tonight or if you would…

Mr. O’Donnell: We’d love to…to speak tonight.  

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. O’Donnell: It’s fine.            

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. This applicant sent out twenty-five registered letters, twenty-three were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: For the record state your name. 

Mr. O’Donnell: Mike O’Donnell. 

Ms. O’Donnell: Sherri O’Donnell.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and state your request. 

Mr. O’Donnell: We’re here to request a…a…two area variances for 15 Stewart Avenue. Our…it’s an existing structure. We bought the property a little over a year ago a…we’ve been watching the property it’s been in distress. I was interested in the property because my mother grew up there. I think my grandfather built the house, the original house so that’s why we were interested in the property. Excuse me, I’m nervous. 

Ms. Drake: You can tilt the microphone up.

Mr. O’Donnell: I have a lot to lose that’s why I’m nervous here. So a…what we’re here to…to like I said to get an area variance for the front a…I mean the…the rear, rear side, the rear yard variance setback of 40-feet. A…it is now a…at 14-foot, 2 and the side yard of 15-feet, it’s now at 13-foot, 7 a…we’re not looking to add anything. We just want to keep what’s there, to try to renovate and try to bring it back to life. A…so…a…that’s, yeah it was the actual structure has been in existence from our records, the Town’s records since 1996 we believe, right, the addition.

Chairperson Cardone: And that was done with a Building Permit? 

Mr. O’Donnell: Right, well…

Chairperson Cardone: And it just did not reach final inspection? Is that correct?

Mr. O’Donnell: Well there is some question there too. I mean…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: Mr. Campbell if could use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: I would ask Mr. Campbell if you could give us a little bit of history on this. 

Mr. Campbell: To my recollection, the Building Permit was taken out and what was constructed not per the application and no inspections were ever done on the work they did. 

Chairperson Cardone: And do you remember what year that was?

Ms. O’Donnell: Our records say 1996.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. You are going to have to speak into the microphone. 

Ms. O’Donnell: The tax record on the property card I believe said 1996.

Mr. O’Donnell: The original permit was 1996.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Drake: And you did not own it back in ’96 when that work was done? Correct?

Mr. O’Donnell: Right. We just purchased about a year ago. A…we did…you know, obviously everything is a concern. We did know there was a concern about inspections a…we did actually meet with the Town and…and after the meeting we felt comfortable. We thought it was just inspections and not setbacks as per the addition. A…you know we didn’t realize that the addition wasn’t originally part of the a…permit application. We actually have submittals that show the addition with a second story, a second floor so we felt comfortable buying it, you know, thought it was a, you know, we could just bring it down to a the walls and do everything new from that point so a…

Ms. O’Donnell: Well I think its...I think its important to note that, oh, I’m sorry, when we met with the Town prior to purchasing the property that’s what we were told. As long as we kept what was there and so we purchased the property and we did as they had suggested to get an engineer involved, get a plan, get the inspections done. We’ve spent a…well over three thousand dollars doing that as we were told, submitted it only to have this come back now. So that, you know, it’s kind of disappointing because we did meet with the Town ahead of time and we’re not changing anything and the, I’m sorry, the structure has been for fifteen years.

Ms. Drake: So you’re…you’re not changing any of the existing structure?

Ms. O’Donnell: No.

Ms. Drake: You’re just trying to get permits and the variance for what’s current? 


Mr. O’Donnell: Right, right. The footprint is going to stay exactly the same a…we’re gutting the house, everything is going to be new a basically a…the inside…

Chairperson Cardone: The stone structure will still be there but you’re going to renovate it or…?

Mr. O’Donnell: Well, right exactly I’m…my grandfather was…laid that stone so I’d like to keep as much as possible, I mean because of the weather and the time some of it is damaged a…so we’re going to save the front, the front stone face of the house and try to, you know, reclaim what’s left basically. A…so we do have renovation plans that shows everything that it’s going to stay the same. The interior will be…the interior is going to change a little bit as per pertaining to the original structure, not the addition. The addition is going to stay exactly the same a…as to the bedrooms.

Ms. Drake: You said you’ve been watching the house do… 

Mr. O’Donnell: Well…     

Ms. Drake: …are you one of the neighbors?

Mr. O’Donnell: Well no I…I mean, we’re local, we’re from Newburgh all our lives and I knew that the house had some history in my family so and it was for sale several years ago but just couldn’t afford it. You know, we bought it now because it was so distressed and undesirable…

Ms. Drake: (Inaudible)

Mr. O’Donnell: …because of the issues.

Ms. O’Donnell: Everyone knows the property, it’s notorious. 

Mr. O’Donnell: Yeah, and the neighbors are very happy, you know, somethings happening so a…we’re just, we just, you know, we just need to get the variance so that we don’t have to rip what’s there down and go back to the original structure which was non-conforming anyway. It’s…it doesn’t meet the setbacks for the rear yard anyway.

Ms. Drake: What do you plan on doing with it when you…after you renovate it? Are you going to live in it?

Mr. O’Donnell: Well we’re no…we’re going to sell it, I mean, we bought it as an investment…

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. O’Donnell: …but, you know, sometimes you get, they say, don’t let your feelings get involved some times because you lose. I hope that’s not the case because, you know I, we were interested in it because my grandfather built the original house.  

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. O’Donnell: So, that’s the only reason that it always, you know, caught my interest but it was affordable enough now to buy it so…

Ms. O’Donnell: But we do need to a…close it up for the winter but we don’t want to spend anymore money at this point until we know what’s going on but it needs to be closed up and made, you know, tight for the winter.

Mr. O’Donnell: Water tight.

Ms. O’Donnell: So maybe…water tight…maybe we can get in there but we definitely need to get the roof fixed and so maybe we can start working on it over the winter.  

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. O’Donnell: I just want to know one more thing, it is Town water and sewer and gas are all available so there’ll be no on-site waste treatment a…so…

Mr. Hughes: Then you’d have no problem if we conditioned the approval with the hook-up of all of those. In other words we just can’t let it float. I’m sure that building was pre-existing, non-conforming wasn’t it?

Mr. O’Donnell: Right, there is…there is no, there is you mean if you…

Mr. Hughes: The water and sewer.

Mr. O’Donnell: The water and sewer is going to go in, yes. There is no room for…for any kind of septic.

Mr. Hughes: I can see that but we’ve all been out to the site.

Mr. O’Donnell: Yeah, yeah.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the report here from Joe it says no on the Town water. Is that correct?

Mr. O’Donnell: Well that means it’s not hooked up.

Mr. Campbell: That means presently there is no Town water, right.

Mr. Hughes: But there is water available in that road?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. O’Donnell: Yeah. I pay a water bill.

Mr. Campbell: You’ve got to talk to the Water Department.  

Mr. O’Donnell: Yeah, the water and sewer…

Chairperson Cardone: Yeah and you will hooking up…?

Mr. O’Donnell: Yes, yes maam.

Chairperson Cardone: …the water. O.K. 

Ms. Drake: Are you…is the building hooked up to the sewer now?

Mr. O’Donnell: No, no there is no hook-up for either. I don’t believe.

Ms. Drake: But you will be hooking up that?

Mr. O’Donnell: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Have you located a well on the property?

Mr. O’Donnell: There is a concrete structure that shows on the plan but I did not investigate it, you know, there is a heavy lid there but no I didn’t, I didn’t really look for anything because the Town water is going in but whatever that structure is its got to be, you know, some safety requirements there. Whatever that is it’s got to be taken care of. I…I’m assuming that’s where the well is.

Mr. Hughes: So you’d have no problem capping that thing off permanently if that’s…?

Mr. O’Donnell: Absolutely not. Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?     

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Recused




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. O’Donnell: Thank you.

Ms. O’Donnell: Thank you. 






(Time Noted – 8:18 PM)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:05 PM) 



MIKE & SHERRI O’DONNELL

15 STEWART AVENUE, NBGH







(99-2-15) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to keep a prior built kitchen addition and 2nd floor addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Mike and Sherri O’Donnell, 15 Stewart Avenue, seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to keep a prior built kitchen addition and 2nd floor addition on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think the fact that they’re taking an interest in the property and want to improve the quality of the property and make it into a usable property again is a admirable and good thing to do. I make a motion to approve the application. 

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Recused




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON



MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JAMES CAMPBELL, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:06 PM)


ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:18 PM) 



BRIAN & MELISSA SOUTHWORTH
1246 UNION AVENUE, NBGH







(37-3-5) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the front yard setback to the center line of the road (Union) to build a second floor addition on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Brian and Melissa Southworth.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order. Just introduce yourself, please

Mr. Southworth: My name is Brian Southworth, my wife Melissa is sitting back there. We’re looking to a add an addition to the address at 1246 Union Ave, putting on a second floor addition to the existing structure. We’re looking for approval of two variances here today. A…one setback is a side setback, it is six inches short. We are supposed to have fifteen feet, we have fourteen six. The second setback is a…the front setback to the center line, the center of the road which is seven feet short. It should be eighty feet and we are at seventy-three feet. So that’s what we’re looking to do here tonight. 

Ms. Drake: You’re just going straight up; you’re not going any further out than the existing structure, correct?

Mr. Southworth: Straight up. 

Mr. Hughes: Your total number of bedrooms is built out?

Mr. Southworth: There will be three bedrooms upstairs; we’re eliminating a bedroom in the downstairs.

Mr. Hughes: There’s no water in that part of Town?   

Mr. Southworth: There is water, there is no sewer.

Mr. Hughes: You’d be willing to hook up to that water?

Mr. Southworth: I believe it is hooked up to the water.

Mr. Hughes: You’re already on the Town water?

Mr. Southworth: Yes, yes.

Ms. Drake: So you’re increasing the number of bedrooms by one then?

Mr. Southworth: We are not increasing the number of bedrooms. We are eliminating one bedroom on the bottom floor and we will put three bedrooms to the second floor addition. 

Mr. Hughes: So you are starting with three and you’re ending with three?

Mr. Southworth: We’re going to end with three.

Mr. Hughes: And what do you know about what serves your building on-site as far as septic? That’s a pretty old building.

Mr. Southworth: Its a thousand gallon tank and it’s been inspected.

Mr. Hughes: And that’s in compliance for a three bedrooms.  

Mr. Southworth: And that’s a…that’s what the Town, that’s the form that you guys gave us, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: I’m sorry; I’m not getting the number of bedrooms, if you’re eliminating one…?

Mr. Southworth: There will be three bedrooms in the house when it is all done. There is not a four bedroom home; it will be a three bedroom home.

Ms. Drake: But you’re adding…?

Mr. Southworth: We are…we are putting three bedrooms in the second floor addition but right now it is…there is a bedroom downstairs that will be eliminated. We are putting a open floor then downstairs.

Ms. Drake: One bedroom downstairs? There’s only one bedroom downstairs? 

Mr. Southworth: There will be no bedrooms downstairs. 

Ms. Drake: Well how many are there in there right now?

Mr. Southworth: Right now there is the one.

Ms. Drake: Just the one. 

Mr. Southworth: O.K. so I guess that’s…we’re adding two I guess.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Southworth: It will equal three at the end. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. And the septic is designed for a three bedroom?

Mr. Southworth: Yes.

Ms. Drake: O.K. I just kept saying one away…two…sorry about that. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.






(Time Noted – 8:22 PM)


----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:06 PM) 



 BRIAN & MELISSA SOUTHWORTH
1246 UNION AVENUE, NBGH







(37-3-5) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the front yard setback to the center line of the road (Union) to build a second floor addition on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Brian and Melissa Southworth, 1246 Union Avenue, seeking area variances for one side yard setback and the front yard setback to the center line of the road to build a second floor addition on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: They are increasing the degree of non-conformity by they are going straight up and it doesn’t make it any worse than the site setbacks are already.

Mr. Manley: Well it fits within the quality of the a buildings that are in the general neighborhood. It’s not taking away from it and also the applicant did a...testify that a…the a…septic was going to be adequate to handle the number of bedrooms. 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON



MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JAMES CAMPBELL, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:07 PM)


ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:22 PM) 



NICHOLAS R. FEDERICI


131 FOREST ROAD, WALLKILL







(3-1-38.1) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setbacks for County Roads and no building within 80 ft. of center line of the road (Forest) to build a covered front porch on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Nicholas R. Federici.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out eleven registered letters, nine were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Federici: Good evening my name is Nicholas Federici. I’m seeking a variance for area because of my proximity to County Route 23 to add a roof to my front porch. 

Chairperson Cardone: And I’d like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. The Board may wish to clarify the variance being sought. Based upon County Planning’s review of the submitted application the finished roof over the existing masonry porch will be approximately forty-six feet and not forty point seven feet from the ROW and sixty-seven feet and not sixty-eight feet from the center line of Forest Road. These numbers may vary slightly since measurement is taken from the building footprint on the survey assuming this is the foundation and not the overhang. The Board would need to determine if the overhang should be within the setback and the County recommendation is Local Determination. 

Mr. McKelvey: You go…you’ve got a cover; you’re not going to go out any further with the cover? 

Mr. Federici: A little, it will stick about an additional six to eight inches.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a clarification on this report from the County, have you seen it or…? 

Mr. Campbell: I don’t think it’s in my packet.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, here.

Mr. McKelvey: Here.

Chairperson Cardone: It seems to me they just haven’t counted the overhang. 

Mr. Federici: Yeah, the overhang is about twenty-three inches.

Mr. Campbell: It looks like the County’s numbers are correct by scaling the drawings which you are not supposed to do; you have to actually have the surveyor put the number in.

Mr. Donovan: Now the other thing just to…its really not a big deal but I once made this mistake in a room full of people…you shouldn’t scale a drawing that’s been photocopied either. This is not an original sealed survey so I mean, I did that, embarrassed myself pretty substantially so now I…again I do not know, that may be what its scaled but that scale may not be accurate. Generally when I get a photocopy from a surveyor, they write all over it, you know, reduced or a…photocopied not to scale so…

Mr. Campbell: Well it looks pretty close to the 48.7 dimension that’s on it. 

Mr. Donovan: So if they give 48.7 and what we’re seeing here is the roof is five, one inch equals two, the overhangs another two that’s seven take away forty then you’re right around forty one to the…so to be on the safe side I’d go with the 40.7that Mr. Mattina put on the…

Ms. Gennarelli: Jim, yeah, that what I was going to say. Do you want his (Mr. Mattina’s) a…calculation?

Mr. Manley: The only thing…

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have the calculations?

Ms. Gennarelli: This is from the Building Permit application. Mr. Mattina’s…

Mr. Manley: The only danger to not giving him the correct amount is if we give him too little…

Mr. Donovan: Then he comes back.

Mr. Manley: Then he’s going to have to come back.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Federici: Well I’m not sure what the problem is. It’s not going to create any line of sight issue on the street.

Chairperson Cardone: The problem is just the figures. The figure that we submitted to the County and the figure that they came up with after going over the plans don’t agree.

Mr. Federici: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: We’re just trying to get a correct figure.

Mr. Federici: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Because if…if indeed you got the variance and then we used the wrong figure then you might find yourself having to come back again.

Mr. Federici: Oh, I wouldn’t want that.

Chairperson Cardone: So we…no, we wouldn’t want that either. That’s why we want to make sure we have the right figure. 

Mr. Federici: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Not that we don’t enjoy your company but…

Mr. Donovan: It’s a remarkably pleasurable experience actually. I would be shocked if you wouldn’t want to come back.

Mr. Federici: This has been an experience let me say. 

Mr. Hughes: One of the things, you know, so you don’t end up back here and paint yourself in the corner there on that porch should we request a letter certifying those numbers from his professional? And you have to build…if it says 48.7 you’ve got to build 48.7; you can’t do 48 point… 

Mr. Federici: Are you talking 48.7 from the centerline of… 

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m just giving a figure, you know, whatever the figure is that they determine is what you’re here for that’s what we’re held by and that’s what you’re held by too. So you don’t want to have a mistake and then somebody picks it up and sends you back here again. So in order so there’s no mistake if could get your design professional to confirm that number with the Building Department.

Mr. Federici: Oh I’m the design professional.

Mr. Hughes: I thought so.

Mr. Federici: This is a low…this is a low budget operation.

Mr. Hughes: Well I…you did a good job on your package but we don’t expect you to know State Law either so you know.

Mr. Donovan: Well the other thing is, I mean I think they may…he’s talking from the right away and…


Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: We’re measuring from the property line. I think that having sat here for a number of years I would rely on Mr. Mattina’s numbers myself.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. If it’s alright with you guys it’s alright with me. 

Ms. Drake: If it turns out that we give him…say we give him forty-nine or something and it turns out to be 48.7…a little bit less and he builds a little bit less than what he’s entitled  too that’s O.K. right? He just can’t build more than that?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: That’s correct.

Ms. Drake: So to protect us and him if we wanted to…

Mr. Donovan: If we use the figures that…that’s correct.

Ms. Drake: Then use the figure to protect him.

Mr. Manley: So if we use Joe’s figures we’re O.K.

Mr. Donovan: He’s O.K.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Federici: Well now are we…are we…are we talking about the supports that are going to hold up the roof or are we talking about the roof structure itself which will be sticking out about ten or twelve inches past the supports?

Mr. Campbell: We measure roof structure.  

Mr. Federici: O.K. the actual facing of roof.

Mr. Hughes: The part of the building to the road. There’s another oddball that exists here too. On a couple of these County roads where they have this they tell you to measure from the double line. That could be as much as two feet off anywhere the road so it’s an arbitrary figure from the double line because the paver comes in and the painter comes in and if they are off a foot on either side of the road that’s two feet in the middle.

Mr. Federici: I’ve seen what they’ve done before so I know what you mean.

Mr. Manley: Do you know why the…  

Mr. Federici: I just want to do it once.

Mr. Manley: Do you know why the a…roads like Rock Cut Road, Forest Road, some of these other roads have an 80-foot right of way? 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Manley: The history buff do you know?

Mr. Hughes: Sure they are County roads and they are looking for expansion at some point and there’s a lot of other things that they figure into that with the County.

Mr. Manley: Well that’s part of it…

Mr. Hughes: There’s water and sewer and a lot of other things.

Mr. Manley: They were designed for future expansion of the Town would have another north south a…you know, piece of infrastructure to get to 32 and 17K and 52…

Mr. Hughes: A corridor to get to Plattekill.

Mr. Manley: …that’s why they had such a wide right of way. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, they try to figure fifteen years ahead when they should be figuring a hundred years ahead.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions other from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? 
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: We need the second.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. In the interest of time I would ask if you would wait out in the hallway and we’ll call you in just a couple of minutes. 









(Time Noted – 8:32 PM)


---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:07 PM) 



NICHOLAS R. FEDERICI


131 FOREST ROAD, WALLKILL







(3-1-38.1) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setbacks for County Roads and no building within 80 ft. of center line of the road (Forest) to build a covered front porch on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Nicholas R. Federici, 131 Forest Road, Wallkill, seeking area variances for the front yard setbacks for County Roads and no building within 80 ft. of center line of the road (Forest) to build a covered front porch on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: Yes, I’m just a little confused it just dawned on me it’s actually Forest Road, right? They have everything as Forest Avenue. Is that just a mis…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, on the agenda? That a typographical error.

Mr. Donovan: That’s what we attorneys call a Scribner’s error.  

Mr. Manley: I see.

Mr. Donovan: Scribner was before they had copy machines. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Everything else was correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. McKelvey: And we’re going to use Joe’s figures?

Mr. Donovan: I suggest to the Board to use Mr. Mattina’s figures. 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the application.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second that under those conditions.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 
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ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 27, 2011             (Time Noted – 9:08 PM) 



OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

MADDOX, LLC/LORA SERVISS

319 NORTH PLANK RD, NBGH







(35-3-21) B & IB ZONE 

Chairperson Cardone: Everyone should have a copy of a letter from James Dillin 

It has come to my attention that the owners of Lot #1 have not been able to meet the deadline to pave the parking area, set by the Zoning Board of Appeals, of September 30, 2011. Due to the excessive amount of rain and severe storms during the late summer and early fall, work has been postponed a number of times. I am requesting that the Zoning Board of Appeals grant an extension for the paving until December 1, 2011. This will give my client adequate time to complete the parking area in a satisfactory manner. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

And I would defer to our attorney.

Mr. Manley: Where is this?

Chairperson Cardone: This is on 32 where the barbershop is. 

Ms. Drake: Across from Weyant.

Chairperson Cardone: There’s a barbershop and there’s a…

Mr. Manley: Yeah?

Mr. Donovan: They were before us what…what it’s got to be a year ago right?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: And we gave him a year…

Chairperson Cardone: We gave him a year a…

Ms. Drake: We gave him a date.

Mr. Donovan: September 30th.

Ms. Drake: Yeah. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Not a whole year now they are asking for a full year (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: And they’re asking for a…

(Inaudible)

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …it’s just on that one that one item which was a condition. 

Mr. Donovan: Now typically our variances are good for six months but obviously if he needed to get an extension of the…well…

Mr. Hughes: What project is this? This is…it’s a barbershop and it’s a…as you’re going out toward Chadwick Lake before you get to the light coming from…like coming from where I live anyway…

Ms. Drake: Coming from Price Chopper, coming out towards…

Chairperson Cardone: It would be on the left hand side just before the intersection with 300 and 32.

Mr. Manley: Oh, O.K. before Maisie’s.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Manley: On the same side but before Maisie’s.

Chairperson Cardone: And then down in the back there’s I don’t know…construction trailer or something.

Ms. Drake: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: At least when I was out there looking at it.

Mr. Donovan: Does the Building Department have any knowledge of what’s…have you guys been out there at all to this or you…?

Mr. Campbell: I have no knowledge of it.

Mr. Donovan: You know, on the one hand it doesn’t seem like a big deal to give them a couple of extra months, on the other hand what have you been doing for a year?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: On the third hand if we turn him down and they come back and they reapply for a variance we’re probably going to give it to him anyway to give him some more time. And on the fourth hand they why I asked the Building Department, we’re probably creating a headache for the Building Department if we don’t extend the time because then you have to violate him. They end up in court and they come back here. 

Chairperson Cardone: There has been a lot of rain not only throughout the summer but you know…

Ms. Drake: The fall, the hurricane.

Chairperson Cardone: The hurricane and everything…

Ms. Drake: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: …so I think that there are…there are conditions that are normal in a regular year. You know it’s hard to do the paving when it’s raining all the time.

Ms. Drake: I just don’t know if they’ll still be able to get down between now and December but...and if we give them one extension does that mean we can only give them one? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, you know what because it’s kind of a different…I think we gave…we rendered an interpretation as I recall that they needed to pave and then we gave them time to pave. We gave him a year to pave it. I don’t have a problem. I just think are we establishing any adverse precedent and I can’t think of how we would be so…

Mr. Manley: No good deed goes unpunished.

Mr. Donovan: Well that certainly is the truth Jim but I think under the circumstances I don’t have any objection to the Board granting their request.

Chairperson Cardone: And I think this is an unusual because of the excessive amount of rain and the storms.

Mr. Donovan: I don’t know how it was here but in my neck of the woods we had a tornado and an earthquake too.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: I don’t know if you guys got the earthquake but it came to my office.

Ms. Drake: Me too.

Chairperson Cardone: Yeah. 

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t feel it though.

Ms. Drake: I did. We evacuated.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah.

Mr. Manley: Wow. I could tell you’re a little shaky tonight. 

Mr. Donovan: That’s just normal shakiness. 

Mr. Manley: Oh.

Mr. McKelvey: Do we need a motion to give them?

Chairperson Cardone: Do we need a motion for that or…?

Mr. Donovan: I would suggest you do it in the form of a motion.

Mr. Manley: Now I just looked at the minutes briefly here and it says…you made a comment that a…because Grace had said…you’ve got to go back a little bit…Ms. Drake: I agree with that the property should comply with the regulations and therefore be of a material per that section of the regulations and therefore I would recommend that pavement or surface be done by September 30th. You said: 2011? Mrs. Drake: Yes, thank you. Mr. Hughes: So you’re proposing an approval with that condition set with it? Chairperson Cardone: No it’s an interpretation. Mr. Donovan: So it would be an interpretation of that section applies and then to allow the applicant or whoever the property owner may be up until September 30, 2011 to comply with that requirement. So it wasn’t an actual decision it was an interpretation? 

Mr. Donovan: It was an interpretation. Correct.

Mr. Manley: So we’re not really extending an approval are we or are we just…?

Mr. Donovan: We are extending…because we interpreted that he had to comply with that section, we gave him until September 30th to do it. So I guess we’re not…

Mr. Manley: Are we extending our interpretation?

Mr. Donovan: We’re…well we are giving an extended time to comply with our interpretation.

Mr. Manley: Got you.

Mr. Donovan: I suggest we do it by vote.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll move it.

Ms. Drake: I'll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: No




James Manley: 

Mr. Manley: This is my issue. I wasn’t there for that meeting hence my question to you and I’m hesitant to make a decision at this moment. I feel as if I should really abstain as I have not had a full opportunity to really gather the facts on that particular application that evening.

Mr. Donovan: That’s…that’s totally up to you. You are not precluded from voting. If you don’t feel you have enough information because you weren’t there you don’t have to vote just understand that the request fails. Not to put it all on your shoulders Jim but…

Mr. Manley: I know and I’m fully aware of that and my only concern is I don’t want to make a decision that potentially could be precedential and if I could maybe have a little more time to confer with you so that I can make that decision. A…do you believe that a decision of this Board to extend this particular case could potentially set any type of precedence for the future if someone else should come to us and ask for an extension beyond the allowable time limit.

Mr. Donovan: As I’ve said before, there is no question in my mind that everything this Board sets a precedent of one fashion or another. Do we have unique circumstances this year? In fact we do and I had the opportunity to actually do a little research on it because I happen to represent among other Municipalities the Village of Goshen. The Village of Goshen has exceeding old…old infrastructure we are having a substantial problem with our sewer manhole surcharging because of so much water in the system. Certainly we had it with a…even though Irene hit in September what I discovered that August was not simply a wet month. It is the wettest month of any month in recorded history. So I mean, and anecdotally five of my kid’s eight rec soccer games have been cancelled as a result of weather. So I think that this is unique year in terms of the amount of rainfall that we’ve had, substantial rainfall so I…do I think that that’s a mitigating circumstance? I do but saying that you’re going to extend the time does that set a precedent? Someone will stand here in some point in time and say, you gave Jim Dillin’s client extra time you should give my client extra time. 

Ms. Drake: What if we changed the approval with a condition or justify is the fact because we had an earthquake, a hurricane, exceedingly wet year we are therefore granting it due to unusual weather we had this year, the unusual amount of rain? Then that give us that protection.

Mr. Donovan: And it does give us that…some level of protection certainly. It’s also true, it’s accurate.  

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Manley: But my other question to is legally how can we give an applicant more time when statutorily we’re not allowed to? We can only grant up to a year? Correct?

Mr. Donovan: Well, except this was a time frame for him to do something. We interpreted that this provision of the Code requiring a dustless surface did in fact apply to him.

Mr. Manley: That it did apply to him. 

Mr. Donovan: That it did apply to him and we gave him a year to comply with that section.

Ms. Drake: Not really, we heard it in December and we gave him until September.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, I thought it was September. So we gave him nine months. So do I believe we have the inherent ability to extend that? I do.

Mr. Manley: And…

Mr. McKelvey: Could we because we gave him the nine months, could he extend it once?

Mr. Donovan: No, I, no I don’t think so. I thought about that and I read through the Code and that doesn’t sit right with me. I like that precedent less. You know, as I say everything that we do sets a precedent but we’ve had and extremely wet year. You can make an argument I don’t know why he didn’t pave in the spring but he didn’t but it certainly has been excessive…

Mr. Manley: But the precedent would be with respect to paving, correct? And creating a dustless surface.

Mr. Donovan: Well it could be. The larger precedent would be establishing a date in a decision by which something had to be done and extending that date. The likelihood of someone coming back with the same circumstance is small.

Mr. Manley: Is unlikely.

Mr. Donovan: But the likelihood for us is sometimes…

Mr. Manley: We say you have to plant trees.

Mr. Donovan: …say you have to do something by some date and somebody coming back and saying well you gave Jim Dillin’s client extra time you should give me extra time. And the response would be well, he had or his client had extenuating circumstances. What are your extenuating circumstances? 

Mr. Manley: Well and we’ve already established for the record that we had an earthquake and a hurricane and a very wet, extensively wet summer. 

Mr. Donovan: Correct, yes. 

Mr. Hughes: And my question is how did anything else get built this year? You know, I think you are reaching very far across the table to accommodate someone’s needs. They knew that they had nine months to finish it, not to prejudice the case or anything but these guys are known lemons. 

Mr. Manley: But on the same…on the same token…

Chairperson Cardone: Wait a minute, can you even vote on this?

Mr. Hughes: Sure, I don’t do business with them or anything. I have no relevancy to them. They are not part of my group.

Chairperson Cardone: No I was just looking at Lora Serviss.

Mr. Hughes: She happens to have a father that I know but we are not related so…

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: And again, based on their track records it’s always a push, it’s always a push and I’m not leaning one way or the other on this I’m just calling it like it is. Again back to my question, how did anything else get built this year? This is a parking lot. We’re not talking a well or a tower or anything else. Go in and pave the damn thing and get it over with. 

Ms. Drake: Well actually if you extend it to December, whatever they asked for, when do the paving plants shut down?

Mr. Hughes: December 10th usually.    

Ms. Drake: Oh I thought it was November actually. O.K. And that’s provided that it dries up that they can get anything done. 

Mr. Hughes: If we get our six inches of snow tomorrow they may close earlier. And we’re talking about three to six it could be. 

Chairperson Cardone: You must be kidding.

Mr. Hughes: No. I brought all my fig trees in this afternoon and put them in the greenhouses because of it. 

Mr. Manley: Well I’m going to error on the side of the applicant and I’m going to a…based on my discussion with you vote to cast a vote in the affirmative for the extension that being the only extension. And as far as the precedence goes I think what you mentioned is if somebody has a similar issue and they can bring similar circumstances…

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Manley: …a two or three month extension in the grand scheme of things may not really hurt things.

Mr. Hughes: What about by the end of this year? The plants close December 10th anyway. Then you’re not sending it another six months or another nine months.

Mr. Donovan: Right. You just vote no and you think we should give them more time? 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s why he voted no he think we were not giving enough time. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m trying to be fair about the thing. 

Mr. McKelvey: Hey, he’s got to finish by December…

Mr. Manley: He said December 1st in the letter.  

Mr. Donovan: So you’re basically giving him thirty days. 

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. McKelvey: Right so if he comes back he’s not going to get it again then. 

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Manley: So in the grand scheme of things we’re really have not…it’s really not, he’s got a month.

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Ms. Drake: If it doesn’t stop raining then he’ll be back again but.

Mr. Hughes: Just as another note, twenty-four inches ahead of the annual rainfall and we have two months to go in the year. There’s a lot of water in that ground out there. 

Ms. Drake: If he didn’t have the smarts to do it long enough for himself then too bad just give it to him to the date he asked for. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Do we need to re-vote on this? 

Mr. Donovan: No, I think we’re up to…

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Grace Cardone: Yes. 

Thank you. 
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ZBA MEETING – OCTOER 27, 2011

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 9:21 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. has everyone had a chance to read the minutes? Any corrections?

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Gennarelli: I just have one question. Was it extended to December 1st?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.  

Ms. Drake: Second it.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye – All (except Mr. Manley)

Mr. Manley: Abstain.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response. 

Ms. Drake: The next meeting is on Tuesday.

Chairperson Cardone: The next meeting would be Tuesday the 22nd of November. And I just want to mention I went to a workshop last week. Thought I’d see you there Ron. It was excellent.

Mr. Hughes: I’m glad you enjoyed it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Excellent.

MR. Hughes: That was the all day session?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, the all day session and with the Orange County Municipal Planning Federation. They really did a wonderful job.   

Mr. Hughes: I’m glad you to hear that. We try to get as much educational material assembled and presented in the proper fashion. We also have our Chairs meetings a couple of times a year and we try to segment it where we have a more specific Zoning Board and Planning Board where they are not overlapping each other at the same meetings.

Chairperson Cardone: Well this covered both and they also had site plans which was…it was geared maybe more to the Planning Board but it was…most of the people in the group I was in were Zoning Board. It was very interesting. It gave us, you know, hands on experience with the site plans. Do we have anything else?  

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we adjourn?

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those favor say?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.
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